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The Long Society Meetinghouse, built in 1817, is located on a rural road 
opposite the former town hall in the village of Long Society, Preston, Connecticut. 
Surrounded on three sides by its cemetery, the church is set back about 35'. It 
is a two-story gable-roofed rectangular building, about 29* by 33 f , with its long 
side placed parallel to the road. This front facade is three bays wide and contains 
the only entrance, which is sheltered by a small vestibule added in the middle of 
the 19th century. The entrance is flanked by a window on each side, and on the 
second-level there are three windows above the corresponding first-story elements. 
On the gable ends are two rows of three windows, symmetrically placed, but on the 
rear facade there is only the pulpit window, a large round-arched opening placed 
in the center of the wall. There is no tower nor other appendages. The cemetery 
contains many 18th-century sandstone markers with angel motifs, as well as 19th- 
century willow designs. Interesting is the vault built in 1779 by one Captain 
John Smith: a sod-covered mound, it is faced on one side with plain dressed stone.

The meetinghouse is built upon a foundation of gray gneiss rubble, with roughly 
dressed entrance steps. The building is sheathed with clapboards, not the original, 
which stop against plain corner boards and window trim. The original double- 
hung 12/12 windows, having long disappeared, have been simulated for security 
reasons by single 24-pane sash. The roof is covered with asphalt shingles, and 
the cornice, very simply molded, returns slightly on the gable end.

The interior is equally severe. Opposite the entrance are the pulpit and its 
platform; although in their original position, these are later renovations. On 
either side within the entrance, and separated from the audience room by a partition 
of wide vertical boards, are stairs leading to a gallery which extends along three 
sides* The gallery is supported by slender columns with turned capitals and a 
ring turning somewhat below. The audience room is filled with five rov/s o£ 
primitive seats, probably original, and built of wide pine boards, with slightly 
sloping backs and curved end supports. Several Windsor settees offer ot*ier seating.

A dado of matched hard-pine sheathing, later work, extends up to the window 
stools on all but the south side. Above this the walls are plastered and painted 
white, as is the ceiling. The gallery railing is built of wide horizontal boards, 
and is plain except for simple moldings at the top and bottom. The trim around 
the windows, which consists of plain casings, is original. The corner and center 
posts are all visable and show a pronounced flare. Much of the interior woodwork, 
including the uncovered medium-width floorboards, has been painted shades of pink, 
red and green, but aside from the color scheme, the interior retains substantially 
its original appearance, and is marked by an austere beauty.

The building is used by the local historical society which has exhibits in the 
galleries. Otherwise the audience room is intact and is used occasionally for 
meetings. The Society itself declined during the 19th century, not making any 
records after 1927, but has been recently reactivated for the express purpose 
of renovating and maintaining the church.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Long Society Meetinghouse is one of about a dozen meetinghouses of this 
form still in existence, and it is the only one of its kind in Connecticut. In the 
18th century most New England churches outside of the large towns were built 
according to a simple plan - a plain two-story building without steeple or even 
tower, with the gable roof's ridgeline parallel to the road. The main entrance 
was always on this side, with the pulpit directly opposite, lighted by a window, 
usually of different design from the others, halfway up the rear wall. In the 
late 18th and early 19th centuries, most interiors were rearranged so that the 
pulpit was at the end of the long axis, and consequently the main entrance an<f 
pulpit window were boarded over. At the same time, many churches underwent exterior 
changes, including enlargement of the building and the addition of towers and 
steeples. The Long Society meetinghouse was the only one of these simple 
buildings in Connecticut to escape these changes.

This meetinghouse exhibits the original 18th-century design in every detail: 
the placement of the pulpit, the simple lines, the pulpit window, the plain 
interior. Ironically, it was built in the years 1817-1819, and is the only 19th- 
century example of this form. The society, an elongated parish set off from 
Norwich, built its first meetinghouse in 1726, but by 1817, this structure was 
beyond repair, and it was voted to replace it with a new one on the same lot. Many 
of the framing members of the old church were reused, and it is apparant that 
little attempt was made to build a modern church. The large flared posts are 
typical of much earlier construction technique. The construction, design and even 
materials of the 18th century were used, suggesting that this building is pri­ 
marily a reconstruction of the first church.

Such plain meetinghouses reflect the nature and position of religion in early 
America. The church building was not a consecrated place, since it had both 
political and religious functions. For this reason, and because of the desire to 
avoid a Papist emphasis on outward form, the meetinghouse was constructed much 
like a secular building, and the interior was sparsely furnished. At the same time, 
the power of the ministers was made obvious by having the pulpit on the long 
side: even the back rows are remarkably close, especially in these small churches. 
In its plain lines, its austere furnishings and the retention of its original 
floor plan, the Long Society Meetinghouse recaptures both the external appearance 
and the interior atmosphere of early New England msetinghouses.
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